
Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, AUGUST 02, 2021 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
The City is providing in-person and electronic options for this meeting in accordance with the Governor's 
Proclamation of Disaster Emergency regarding meetings and hearings.  The City encourages in-person attendees 
to follow the latest CDC guidelines to reduce the risk of COVID-19 transmission. 

The meeting will be accessible via video conference and the public may access/participate in the meeting in the 
following ways: 
 
a) By dialing the phone number +13126266799 or +19292056099 or +12532158782 or +13017158592 or 
+13462487799 or +16699006833 and when prompted, enter the meeting ID (access code) 962 7287 1738. 
b) iPhone one-tap: +13126266799,,96272871738#  or +19292056099,,96272871738# 
c) Join via smartphone or computer using this link: https://zoom.us/j/96272871738.   
d) View the live stream on Channel 15 YouTube using this link: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCCzeig5nIS-
dIEYisqah1uQ  (view only).  
e) Watch on Cedar Falls Cable Channel 15 (view only). 
 
To request to speak when allowed on the agenda, participants must click “Raise Hand” if connected by 
smartphone or computer, or press *9 if connected by telephone. All participants will be muted by the presiding 
officer when not actually speaking. 

Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of July 19, 2021. 

Agenda Revisions 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Special Presentations 

2. Proclamation recognizing August 8-14, 2021 as National Health Center Week. 

Special Order of Business 

3. Continuation of the public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate 
of cost for the 2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published July 23, 2021) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 

1



Page 2 of 4 

e) Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost 
for the 2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project. 

4. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2021 
Seal Coat Project. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published July 23, 2021) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost 
for the 2021 Seal Coat Project. 

5. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2021 
Street Patching Project.  
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published July 23, 2021) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost 
for the 2021 Street Patching Project.  

Old Business 

6. Pass Ordinance #2992, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to the speed limit on certain portions of Viking Road, upon its third & final 
consideration. 

7. Pass Ordinance #2993, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to parking restrictions in municipal parking lots, upon its second consideration, 
OR 

a) Suspend the rules requiring ordinances to be considered at three separate meetings (requires at 
least six aye votes), and 

b) Pass the ordinance upon its third & final consideration. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

8. Receive and file the resignation of Craig Schwerdtfeger as a member of the Community Center & 
Senior Services Board. 

9. Receive and file the Work Session minutes of July 19, 2021 relative to the following items: 
a) Northern Cedar Falls Drainage. 
b) Human Rights Commission-Joint Meeting.  

10. Receive and file the Departmental Monthly Reports of June, 2021. 

2



Page 3 of 4 

11. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Smokin Oak Wood Fired Pizza, 1525 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class B beer – renewal. 
b) Vintage Iron, 104 Main Street, Class B wine – renewal. 
c) Kwik Star, 4515 Coneflower Parkway, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 
d) The Black Hawk Hotel/Bar Winslow/Carter House Market & Cafe, 115-119 Main Street, Class B 
liquor, Class B wine & outdoor service - renewal. 
e) Octopus, 2205 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
f) Texas Roadhouse, 5715 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal. 
g) Panther Travel Center, 1525 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class E liquor – renewal. 
h) Fast Track Racing, 100 Block of Clay Street, Class B beer & outdoor service - 5-day permit. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

12. Resolution rescinding Resolution #22,201, being a resolution approving and adopting public meeting 
protocols during the COVID-19 pandemic. 

13. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with Carlson 
Dettmann Consulting for administration of civil service testing. 

14. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of an application for American Rescue Plan (ARP) 
funding to the National Endowment for the Arts for marketing, artist fees & equipment, and collection 
registration for the Hearst Center of the Arts. 

15. Resolution in support of a grant application to the Otto Schoitz Foundation  for the Cedar River 
Recreation Project. 

16. Resolution in support of a Resource Enhancement and Protection (REAP) grant application to the 
Iowa Department of Natural Resources for the Cedar River Recreation Project. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing an Amendment to an Entitlement Community Development 
Block Grant COVID-19 Program Contract with the Iowa Economic Development Authority relative to 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG-CV2) funding relative to the CARES Act. 

18. Resolution approving and accepting two Temporary Easements for construction, in conjunction with 
the FFY20-21 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Community Housing Development Organization 
(CHDO) Subrecipient Agreement with Iowa Heartland Habitat for Humanity for the use of FY2021 
federal HOME funds relative to the acquisition and rehabilitation of 913 Bluff Street. 

20. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the low bid of Cobalt 
Contracting, L.C., in the amount of $157,876.17 for the 2021 Public Sidewalk Repair and Infill 
Project.  

21. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the low bid of Cobalt 
Contracting, L.C., in the amount of $57,766.37 for the 2021 Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 4.  

22. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the low bid of Benton's Sand 
and Gravel, Inc., in the amount of $102,915.60 for the 2021 Permeable Alley Project. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

23. Allow Bills and Claims of August 2, 2021. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Staff Updates 

3



Page 4 of 4 

Executive Session 

24. Executive Session to discuss Legal Matters per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c) to discuss strategy 
with counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or where litigation is imminent where its 
disclosure would be likely to prejudice or disadvantage the position of the governmental body in that 
litigation; and Property Acquisition per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to discuss the purchase or sale 
of particular real estate only where premature disclosure could be reasonably expected to increase 
the price the governmental body would have to pay for that property or reduce the price the 
governmental body would receive for that property. 

Adjournment 

4



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, JULY 19, 2021 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 
  

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Miller, Kruse, 
Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Absent: deBuhr.  

  
53402 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of July 6, 2021 be approved as presented and ordered of record. Motion 
carried unanimously.  

 
53403 - Eashaan Vajpeyi, 3831 Convair Lane, commented on development projects 

being proposed and urged Council to carefully review parking for future 
developments projects. 

 
  City Attorney Rogers responded to questions by T.J. Frein, 1319 Austin Way, 

regarding any plans by the City to appeal the Public Employee Relations Board 
ruling and associated costs. 

   
53404 - Mayor Green recognized Rosemary Beach and Floyd Winter, and presented 

them with Distinguished Service Awards for their service on the Health Trust 
Fund Board. 

 
Mayor Green read a Proclamation recognizing August 3, 2021 as National Night 
Out in Cedar Falls. 

53405 - Mayor announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 12, 2021, this 
was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposal to enter into an 
Agreement for Private Development with CV Commercial, L.L.C. relative to a 
commercial/residential mixed use development. It was then moved by Darrah 
and seconded by Harding that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be 
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously.  

53406 -  The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 
proposal. Upon being advised that there were no written communications on file, 
the Mayor then called for oral comments. Economic Development Coordinator 
Graham provided a brief summary of the proposal, and College Hill Partnership 
Executive Director Kathryn Sogard spoke in support of the proposal. There being 
no one else present wishing to speak about the proposal, the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
53407 -     It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,460, 

approving the proposal to enter into an Agreement for Private Development with 
CV Commercial, L.L.C. relative to a commercial/residential mixed use 
development, be adopted. Following questions and comments by 
Councilmembers Sires, Harding and Kruse, and responses by Graham, Mayor 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

Green and City Administrator Gaines, the Mayor put the question on the motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Dunn. Nay: Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #22,460 duly passed and adopted. 

   
53408 -  Mayor announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 12, 2021, this 

was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2021 CDBG Sidewalk 
Infill Project. It was then moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that the proof 
of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried 
unanimously.  

53409 -  The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 
proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. City Engineer Wicke provided a 
brief summary of the proposed project and indicated that due to updated Federal 
and State requirements, the public hearing would need to be continued to the 
next meeting. The Mayor then announced the continuation of the hearing until 
the August 2, 2021 meeting and that consideration of any action would be 
deferred until that time. The Mayor then passed to the next order of business. 

 
53410- Mayor announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 12, 2021, this 

was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2021 Public Sidewalk 
Repair and Infill Project. It was then moved by Harding and seconded by Darrah 
that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously.  

53411 -  The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 
proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Civil Engineer Tolan provided a 
brief summary of the proposed project. There being no one else present wishing 
to speak about the project, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to 
the next order of business. 

 
53412 -     It was moved by Miller and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,461, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the 2021 Public Sidewalk Repair and Infill Project, be adopted. Following 
due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #22,461 duly passed and adopted.  

 
53413- Mayor announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 12, 2021, this 

was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2021 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project - Zone 4. It was then moved by Darrah and seconded by 
Harding that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed 
on file. Motion carried unanimously.  

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

53414 -  The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 
proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Civil Engineer Armstrong 
provided a brief summary of the proposed project. There being no one else 
present wishing to speak about the project, the Mayor declared the hearing 
closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
53415 -     It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,462, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the 2021 Sidewalk Assessment Project - Zone 4, be adopted. Following 
due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #22,462 duly passed and adopted.  

 
53416- Mayor announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 12, 2021, this 

was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2021 Permeable Alley 
Project. It was then moved by Darrah and seconded by Harding that the proof of 
publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried 
unanimously.  

53417 -  The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 
proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. City Engineer Wicke provided a 
brief summary of the proposed project. There being no one else present wishing 
to speak about the project, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to 
the next order of business. 

 
53418 -     It was moved by Miller and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,463, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the 2021 Permeable Alley Project, be adopted. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, Kruse, 
Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #22,463 duly passed and adopted.  

 
52419 -  It was moved by Harding and seconded by Darrah that Ordinance #2992, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to the speed limit on certain portions of Viking Road, be passed upon its 
second consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put 
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: 
None. Motion carried. 

 
53420 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Darrah that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

of members to Boards and Commissions: 
a) Phyllis Carter, Community Center & Senior Services Board, term ending 
06/30/2024.  
b) Crystal Ford, Civil Service Commission, term ending 04/04/2022. 
c) Rebecca Whitaker, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2022. 

Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of July 6, 2021 relative to 
the following items: 
a) Incident Command System with County EMA. 
b) Parking Ordinance Amendments. 

Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Cypress Lounge, 209 A State Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 
b) Hy-Vee Market Grille, 6301 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal. 
c) George’s Local, 108 E. 4th Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service – new with 
exceptions. 
d) Wal-Mart, 525 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C liquor – change in ownership. 

 Motion carried unanimously. 

53421 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse that the following resolutions 
be introduced and adopted: 

 
 Resolution #22,464, approving and authorizing execution of a Client Agreement 

with Express Scripts, Inc. relative to pharmacy benefit management services. 

 Resolution #22,465, approving and authorizing execution of a Lease Estoppel 
Certificate relative to a Lease Agreement between the City, the Board of 
Trustees of the Municipal Electric Utility, and Cedar Falls Solar Farm, LLC for the 
use of certain city-owned property located at 800 Viking Road as a solar garden. 

 Resolution #22,466, approving and accepting three Temporary Easements for 
construction, in conjunction with the FFY20-21 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project. 

 Resolution #22,467, approving and accepting three Temporary Construction 
Easements, in conjunction with the Cyber Lane Extension Project.  

 Resolution #22,468, approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the 
purchase of a loader mounted snow blower for the Public Works Department. 

 Resolution #22,469, approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the 
purchase of transfer station equipment, in conjunction with the Transfer Station 
Pit Refurbishing Project. 

 Resolution #22,470, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting 
the low bid of Owen Contracting, Inc., in the amount of $296,323.66, for the 
Cyber Lane Extension Project. 

 Resolution #22,471, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Service Agreement with Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC for design, 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

construction and acquisition services relative to the Main Street Reconstruction 
Project. 

 Resolution #22,472, receiving and filing, and setting August 2, 2021 as the date 
of public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & 
estimate of cost for the 2021 Seal Coat Project.  

 Resolution #22,473, receiving and filing, and setting August 2, 2021 as the date 
of public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & 
estimate of cost for the 2021 Street Patching Project. 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,464 through #22,473 duly passed and 
adopted. 

53422 -    It was moved by Harding and seconded by Miller that Ordinance #2993, 
amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to parking restrictions in municipal parking lots, be passed upon its first 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: 
None. Motion carried. 

 
53423 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the bills and claims of July 

19, 2021 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Miller, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. 

    
53424 -   Public Works Director Schrage provided an update on modifications to the Iowa 

Department of Transportation (IDOT) signage on West 1st Street. 
 
     Mayor Green promoted National Night Out and provided information regarding 

the City’s Express Permit for street closures and block parties. 
 
53425 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the meeting be adjourned 

at 7:47 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
     ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

9

Item 1.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 
 

 

 

 
NATIONAL HEALTH CENTER WEEK 

August 8-14, 2021  
 

WHEREAS, our nation’s network of Community Health Centers make up the country’s 

largest primary care network, with 30 million Americans served annually in over 

14,000 communities -- including 20,000 at Peoples Community Health Clinic; and   

 

WHEREAS, Community Health Centers are on the front lines of emerging health care 

crises, addressing the opioid epidemic, providing access to care for our nation’s 

veterans, and responding to public health threats in the wake of natural disasters and 

global pandemics; and  

 

WHEREAS, Peoples Community Health Clinic has provided high-quality, affordable, 

comprehensive primary and preventive health care to the Cedar Valley since 1976, 

having a significant and lasting positive impact on the health of under-served and 

vulnerable populations; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is fitting for Cedar Falls residents to celebrate the success of Peoples 

Community Health Clinic, and to recognize it as an irreplaceable community health 

resource benefitting the entire Cedar Valley;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do hereby 

proclaim August 8-14, 2021, as National Health Center Week in Cedar Falls, and 

encourage all residents to celebrate Peoples Community Health Clinic’s positive 

lasting legacy in our community; I further encourage residents to learn about and 

support the upcoming Peoples Community Health Clinic capital campaign to extend 

the clinic campus and expand services to the Cedar Valley in the decades ahead.  

 

Signed this 14th day of July, 2021. 

 

 

______________________________________                                          

Mayor Robert M. Green 

 10

Item 2.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: July 26, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: 2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project 
  Project No. SW-000-3248 
  Public Hearing 
 
Submitted within for City Council Approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs 
and Quantities for the 2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project.  
 
This project shall consist of the construction of Portland Cement Concrete (PCC) sidewalks, 
minor grading, miscellaneous curb and gutter replacement, installation of pedestrian ramps and 
site restoration to meet the requirements of American with Disabilities Act (ADA).   
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $176,242.53. The project will be 
fully funded by a Community Development Block Grant.  
 
The Engineering Division recommends approving the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project.  
 
xc: David Wicke, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

  

11

Item 3.



ITEM UNIT EST. EXTENDED EST. EXTENDED EST. EXTENDED

NO. DESCRIPTION PRICE QUANTITY COSTS QUANTITY COSTS QUANTITY COSTS

1 REMOVE SIDEWALK, P.C.C. S.Y. $12.00 5 $60.00 17.50 $210.00 24.40 $292.80 46.90 $562.80
2 REMOVAL OF CURB & GUTTER, 2.5 FT. WIDTH L.F. $11.00 47.33 $520.63 50.50 $555.50 80.00 $880.00 177.83 $1,956.13
3 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 4 INCH S.Y. $50.00 830.3 $41,515.00 282.50 $14,125.00 409.20 $20,460.00 1522.00 $76,100.00
4 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH S.Y. $53.00 45 $2,385.00 49.00 $2,597.00 41.10 $2,178.30 135.10 $7,160.30
5 PLACE DETECTABLE WARNING PANELS S.F. $34.00 46 $1,564.00 60.00 $2,040.00 80.00 $2,720.00 186.00 $6,324.00
6 PLACE CURB & GUTTER, 2.5 FT. WIDE, P.C.C., CLASS "C" L.F. $28.00 47.33 $1,325.24 50.50 $1,414.00 80.00 $2,240.00 177.83 $4,979.24
7 CLASS 10 EXCAVATION C.Y. $14.00 340.15 $4,762.10 32.50 $455.00 199.00 $2,786.00 571.65 $8,003.10
8 TOPSOIL, FURNISH AND SPREAD C.Y. $35.00 220 $7,700.00 46.30 $1,620.50 94.90 $3,321.50 361.20 $12,642.00
9 SOD S.F. $1.70 9147.8 $15,551.26 2502.00 $4,253.40 5124.00 $8,710.80 16773.80 $28,515.46
10 SURFACING, 1 INCH ROADSTONE TONS $34.00 0 $0.00 14.00 $476.00 10.00 $340.00 24.00 $816.00
11 INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER L.F. $9.00 46 $414.00 6.00 $54.00 6.00 $54.00 58.00 $522.00
12 UNSTABLE MATERIAL, OVER EXCAVATION C.Y. $25.00 10 $250.00 5.00 $125.00 5.00 $125.00 20.00 $500.00
13 CONCRETE STAIRS, TYPE A S.F. $45.00 24.7 $1,111.50 0.00 $0.00 0.00 $0.00 24.70 $1,111.50
14 CLEARING AND GRUBBING UNIT $75.00 290 $21,750.00 0.00 $0.00 0.00 $0.00 290.00 $21,750.00
15 TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. $4,500.00 0.33 $1,500.00 0.33 $1,500.00 0.33 $1,500.00 1.00 $4,500.00
16 CFU WORK (LIGHT POLE AND OH ELECTRIC) EA $800.00 1 $800.00 0.00 $0.00 0.00 $0.00 1.00 $800.00

$176,242.53

TUCSON DRIVE WALNUT STREET

TOT.      

COSTS

TOT. 

QUANTITY
UNIT

WEST 3RD STREET

12

Item 3.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: July 26, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: 2021 Seal Coat 
  Project No. SC-000-3272 
  Public Hearing 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs 
and Quantities for the 2021 Seal Coat Project. 
 
This Project involves seal coating 13 street sections, covering 29,018 S.Y.; and 24,391 S.Y. at 
multiple single lane drives within 3 cemeteries and 7 parking lots. Work shall include proper 
surface preparation and proper placement and compaction of the surface. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $143,728.14. Funding for the 
project is provided by the City’s Street Construction Fund (SCF) and also the Local Options 
Sales Tax (LOST).  
 
The Engineering Division recommends approving the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2021Seal Coat Project.  
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

13

Item 4.



Item Item Estimated Estimated Total Unit Estimated

No. Description Unit Streets Parks Estimated Cost Cost

Quantity

1 Surface Preparation, Streets & Parks S.Y. 26,502.59 3,907.50 30,410.09 0.30 9,123.03$      

2 Seal Coat, Streets S.Y. 29,010.49 0.00 29,010.49 2.20 63,823.08

3 Seal Coat, Parks S.Y. 0.00 24,386.38 24,386.38 2.20 53,650.04

4 Pavement Markings, Painted STA. 0.72 30.48 31.20 60.00 1,872.00

5 Pavement Markings, Handicapped Symbols EA. 0.00 4.00 4.00 65.00 260.00

6 Mobilization L.S. 0.50 0.50 1.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

7 Traffic Control L.S. 0.85 0.15 1.00 10,000.00 10,000.00

TOTAL: 143,728.14$  

PROJECT NO. SC-000-3272

2021 SEAL COAT PROJECT

ENGINEER'S COST ESTIMATE

7/09/2021

14

Item 4.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: July 26, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: 2021 Street Patching Project  
  Project No. RS-000-3275 
  Public Hearing 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs 
and Quantities for the 2021 Street Patching Project.  
 
This project involves the construction of forty-six (46) utility patches on existing City streets. 
Work shall include roughly 644.32 SY removal and replacement of existing pavement; 118 tons 
of asphalt patches; 105 LF of concrete curb and gutter; subgrade preparation; and replacement 
of driveway approaches and pedestrian ramps. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $288,409.85. The project will be 
funded by Cedar Falls Utilities.   
 
The Engineering Division recommends approving the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2021 Street Patching Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

  

15

Item 5.



ITEM# DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL

1 REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT S.Y. 677.05 30.00$          20,311.50$    

2 REMOVAL OF CURB & GUTTER L.F. 92.64 10.00$          926.40$          

3 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY S.Y. 13.13 80.00$          1,050.40$       

4 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. 43.05 13.00$          559.65$          

5 SAW CUTTING FOR REMOVALS L.F. 2110.07 15.00$          31,651.05$    

6 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10 C.Y. 214.73 40.00$          8,589.20$       

7 CURB, PCC 7 IN. 2.0 FT. WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 53.1 49.00$          2,601.90$       

8 CURB, PCC 7 IN. 2.5 FT. WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 39.84 50.00$          1,992.00$       

9 CURB, PCC 7 IN. 3.0 FT. WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 11.3 80.00$          904.00$          

10 MODIFIED SUBBASE C.Y. 214.73 65.00$          13,957.45$    

11 TOPSOIL, FURNISH & SPREAD C.Y. 3.078 95.00$          292.41$          

12 HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.Y. 28.14 30.00$          844.20$          

13 DRIVEWAY, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 13.13 115.00$        1,509.95$       

14 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 4 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 41.12 85.00$          3,495.20$       

15 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 1.933 275.00$        531.58$          

16 PEDESTRIAN RAMPS, DETECTABLE WARNING S.F. 48 1,000.00$    48,000.00$    

17 UTILITY PATCH, P.C.C., TYPE "C" CLASS III S.Y. 644.32 150.00$        96,648.00$    

18 UTILITY PATCH, HMA (ST),  PG58-28S TONS 117.738 120.00$        14,128.56$    

19 COMPACTION OF SUBGRADE S.Y. 677.05 8.00$            5,416.40$       

21 TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1 35,000.00$  35,000.00$    

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE 

2021 STREET PATCHING PROJECT

RS-000-3275

TOTAL 

ESTIMATE
288,409.85$  

16

Item 5.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: July 1, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: Updates to City Code Section 23-300  
  Lawful Speed Limits Established 
  Viking Road  
 
 
After the completion of the newly designed and constructed portion of Viking Road at 
Highway 58, the intended speed limit through the updated corridor from Hudson Road 
to Prairie Parkway is 35 mph. Now that construction has been completed by the Iowa 
Department of Transportation and their contractor, the posted speed on Viking Road will 
need to be updated from Prairie Parkway to Hudson Road. The existing corridor West of 
Prairie Parkway will remain as currently posted at 45 mph.   
 
The Engineering Division is proposing changes to City Code Section 23-300, Lawful 
Speed Limits Established, to align the code to match what has been designed and 
constructed. Please see the attached redline changes for City Code Section 23-300, 
Lawful Speed Limits Established.  
 
The Engineering Division recommends approval of setting the speed limit to 35 mph on 
Viking Road from Prairie Parkway to the West City Limits and setting the speed limit to 
45 mph on Viking Road from Cedar Heights to Prairie Parkway.  
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to ask. 
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer  
 

17

Item 6.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By: Matthew Tolan, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 268-5161 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2992 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE ENUMERATED SPEED LIMIT ON 
VIKING ROAD AS 35 MILES PER HOUR FROM THE WEST CITY LIMITS TO 
PRAIRIE PARKWAY AND 45 MILES PER HOUR FROM PRAIRIE PARKWAY 
TO CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE, IN SECTION 23-300, LAWFUL SPEED LIMITS 
ESTABLISHED, OF DIVISION 5, SPEED, OF ARTICLE III, OPERATION, OF 
CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, BY REPEALING 
SUBSECTION 10(U), AND ENACTING A NEW SUBSECTION 10(U) IN LIEU 
THEREOF; AND REPEALING SUBSECTION 12(U) AND ENACTING A NEW 
SUBSECTION (12)(U) IN LIEU THEREOF. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
Section 1. Subsection 10(u) and Subsection 12(u) of Section 23-300, Lawful speed limits 

established, of Division 5, Speed, of Article III, Operation, of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor 
Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, are hereby amended by 
repealing said Subsections in their entirety and enacting in lieu thereof new Subsections 10(u) 
and 12(u), as follows: 

 
Sec. 23-300. - Lawful speed limits established. 

Unless otherwise provided by this chapter or other city ordinances and appropriately 
posted, the speed limits established in this section shall be the lawful speed, and any speed in 
excess thereof shall be unlawful. 

[unchanged provisions omitted] 

   (10) 35 miles per hour. 35 miles per hour on any of the following streets as indicated: 
 

[unchanged provisions omitted] 
 

 u. Viking Road, from its intersection with the west line of Prairie Parkway west to 
the west city limits. 

 

18

Item 6.



2 

 

[unchanged provisions omitted] 
 

(12)  45 miles per hour.  45 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated: 
 
                                   [unchanged provisions omitted] 
 
      u. Viking Road, from the east line of Prairie Parkway east to its intersection with 

Cedar Heights Drive. 
 
                                  [unchanged provisions omitted] 

 
 
 
 

 
INTRODUCED:     July 6, 2021     
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   July 6, 2021     
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:   July 19, 2021     
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:        
 
ADOPTED:           
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                           Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

19

Item 6.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:39 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 1 of 4 

Sec. 23-300. Lawful speed limits established. 

Unless otherwise provided by this division or other city ordinances and appropriately posted, the speed 
limits established in this section shall be the lawful speed, and any speed in excess thereof shall be unlawful.  

(1) Parks, cemeteries and alleys. 15 miles per hour in any park, cemetery or public alley.  

(2) Business districts. 20 miles per hour in any business district.  

(3) Industrial districts. 25 miles per hour in any industrial district.  

(4) Residence districts; school districts. 25 miles per hour in any residence or school district.  

(5) Suburban districts. 45 miles per hour in any suburban district.  

(6) Fifteen miles per hour. 15 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

a. Clay Street, from West Third Street north to West Second Street.  

b. Pheasant Drive, for a distance of 210 feet east of the centerline of the jog in Pheasant Drive and 
for a distance of 200 feet west of the centerline of the jog in Pheasant Drive.  

(7) Twenty miles per hour. 20 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

Waterloo Road, from its intersection with 14th Street northwesterly to the intersection of Bluff Street 
and East 13th Street.  

(8) Twenty-five miles per hour. 25 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

a. 27th Street (West), from its intersection with Hudson Road west a distance of 1,800 feet.  

b. Brandilynn Boulevard, from 400 feet east of Wal-Mart Drive west to the west end of the street.  

c. Center Street, from its intersection with First Street to a point 300 feet north of First Street.  

d. Center Street, from a point 200 feet south of its intersection with Green Avenue north to a point 
200 feet north of its intersection with Lantz Avenue.  

e. Chancellor Drive, from Viking Road south to Ridgeway Avenue.  

f. Cottage Row Road, from Center Street south to a point 800 feet west of the south end of the 
Snag Creek Bridge.  

g. Technology Parkway, from Hudson Road east to Chancellor Drive.  

h. Wal-Mart Drive, from Brandilynn Boulevard south to Viking Road.  

i. Westminster Drive, from Viking Road north and east to Nordic Drive.  

(9) 30 miles per hour. 30 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

a. First Street (East) eastbound, from Main Street east to a point 850 feet east of Main Street.  

b. First Street (East) westbound, from a point 520 feet east of Main Street west to Main Street.  

c. First Street (West), from Main Street west to Highland Drive.  

d. Brandilynn Boulevard, from 400 feet east of Wal-Mart Drive east to the east end of the street.  

e. Main Street (South), from University Avenue south to Orchard Drive.  

f. Prairie Parkway, from Brandilynn Boulevard south to Viking Road.  

g. Winterberry Drive, from Brandilynn Boulevard south to Viking Road.  

20

Item 6.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:39 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 2 of 4 

(10) 35 miles per hour. 35 miles per hour on any of the following streets as indicated:  

a. 12th Street (West), from a point 425 feet west of the Carriage Lane intersection with West 12th 
Street to a point 125 feet west of the intersection of Barnett Drive with West 12th Street.  

b. 18th Street (East), from Main Street to Waterloo Road.  

c. 27th Street (West), from a point 1,800 feet west of Hudson Road west to a point 4,000 feet west 
of Hudson Road.  

d. Big Woods Road, from Lake Street north to the north city limits.  

e. Cedar Heights Drive, from its intersection with University Avenue to a point 1,200 feet south of 
University Avenue.  

f. Center Street, from a point 300 feet north of First Street north to a point 200 feet south of its 
intersection with Green Avenue, and from a point 200 feet north of its intersection with Lantz 
Avenue north to the north city limits.  

g. Cottage Row Road, from 800 feet west of the south end of the Snag Creek Bridge west to the end 
of said road.  

h. Dunkerton Road, from its intersection with Center Street east to its intersection with U. S. 
Highway 218.  

i. Greenhill Road, from Hudson Road west and north to West 27th Street.  

j. Hudson Road, from its intersection with the south line of University Avenue north to its 
intersection with First Street.  

k. Independence Avenue, from Lincoln Street north to Big Woods Road.  

l. Lake Street, from a point 600 feet east of Central Avenue east to U.S. Highway 218.  

m. Lincoln Street, from its intersection with Jefferson Street east to its intersection with Vermont 
Street.  

n. Lone Tree Road, from its intersection with Ford Road to Center Street.  

o. Main Street, from 13th Street to University Avenue, inclusive.  

p. Main Street (South), from Orchard Drive south to the end of the street.  

q. Production Drive, from Viking Road west and south to Technology Parkway.  

r. Rainbow Drive, from its intersection with Waterloo Road east to the city limits.  

s. Technology Parkway, from Hudson Road west to the west end of the street.  

t. University Avenue, from Hudson Road east to the east city limits.  

u. Viking Road, from its intersection with the west line of Hudson Road Prairie Parkway west to the 
west city limits.  

v. Waterloo Road, from its intersection with East 14th Street southeasterly to its intersection of 
University Avenue.  

w. Ridgeway Avenue, from Hudson Road east to Iowa Highway 58.  

(11) 40 miles per hour. 40 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

Reserved.  

(12) 45 miles per hour. 45 miles per hour on the following streets as indicated:  

21

Item 6.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:39 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 3 of 4 

a. First Street (East) eastbound, from a point 850 feet east of Main Street to a point 1,520 feet east 
of Main Street.  

b. First Street (East) westbound, from a point 1,200 feet east of Main Street west to a point 520 feet 
east of Main Street.  

c. First Street (West), from Highland Drive west to a point 340 feet west of Lake Ridge Drive.  

d. 12th Street (West), from a point 125 feet west of the intersection of Barnett Drive with West 
12th Street to the west city limits.  

e. 27th Street (West), from a point 4,000 feet west of Hudson Road west to the west city limits.  

f. Cedar Heights Drive, from a point 1,200 feet south of University Avenue south to the city limits.  

g. Center Street, from a point 300 feet north of First Street to Cottage Row Road.  

h. Dunkerton Road, from its intersection with U. S. Highway 218 east to the east city limits.  

i. Fitkin Road, from its intersection with Ford Road to Center Street.  

j. Ford Road, from its intersection with Fitkin Road south to Lone Tree Road.  

k. Greenhill Road, from its intersection with Hudson Road to the east city limits.  

l. Hudson Road, from its intersection with the south line of University Avenue south to the south 
city limits.  

m. Iowa Highway 58, from its intersection with Ridgeway Avenue south to the south city limits.  

n. Lake Street, from U.S. Highway 218 east to the east city limits.  

o. Leversee Road (West half), from a point one-quarter mile north of Lincoln Street to the north city 
limits.  

p. Lincoln Street, from its intersection with Vermont Street easterly to the city limits.  

q. Lone Tree Road, from its intersection with Center Street to Leversee Road.  

r. Main Street (South), from Viking Road south to the city limits.  

s. Ridgeway Avenue, from Hudson Road west to the western city limits.  

t. Union Road, from the south city limits to West 1st Street.  

u. Viking Road, from the east city limits to the east line of Hudson Road line of Prairie Parkway east 
to its intersection with Cedar Heights Drive. 

v. Ridgeway Avenue, from Iowa Highway 58 east to the eastern city limits.  

(13) 50 miles per hour. 50 miles per hour on the following streets and/or highways as indicated:  

a. First Street (West), from a point 340 feet west of Lake Ridge Drive west to Union Road.  

b. Union Road, from West First Street north to the north city limits.  

(14) 55 miles per hour. 55 miles per hour on the following streets and/or highways as indicated:  

a. First Street (East) eastbound, from a point 1,520 feet east of Main Street east to a point 700 feet 
east of the midpoint between the Iowa Highway 58 northbound overpass and the Iowa Highway 
58 southbound overpass.  

22

Item 6.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:39 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 4 of 4 

b. First Street (East) westbound, from a point 600 feet west of the midpoint between the Iowa 
Highway 58 northbound overpass and the Iowa Highway 58 southbound overpass west to a point 
1,200 feet east of Main Street.  

c. First Street (West), from Union Road west to the west city limits.  

d. Iowa Highway 58, from a point 1,300 feet north of its intersection with Greenhill Road south to 
its intersection with Ridgeway Avenue.  

e. University Avenue, from a point 3,100 feet west of its intersection with Hudson Road to the west 
city limits.  

(15) 60 miles per hour. 60 miles per hour on the following streets and/or highways as indicated:  

a. First Street (East), from its intersection with the midpoint between the Iowa Highway 58 
northbound overpass and the Iowa Highway 58 southbound overpass east a distance of 700 feet.  

b. Iowa Highway 58, from its intersection with First Street south to a point 1,300 feet north of its 
intersection with Greenhill Road.  

c. U.S. Highway 218 southbound, from a point 2,000 feet north of its intersection with Lincoln 
Street south to its intersection with First Street.  

d. U.S. Highway 218 northbound, from its intersection with First Street north to a point 410 feet 
north of its intersection with Lincoln Street.  

(16) 65 miles per hour. 65 miles per hour on the following streets and/or highways as indicated:  

a. First Street (East) eastbound, from a point 700 feet east of its intersection with the midpoint 
between the Iowa Highway 58 northbound overpass and the Iowa Highway 58 southbound 
overpass east to the east city limits.  

b. First Street (East) westbound, from the east city limits west to a point 600 feet east of its 
intersection with the midpoint between the Iowa Highway 58 northbound overpass and the Iowa 
Highway 58 southbound overpass.  

c. U.S. Highway 218 southbound, from the north city limits south to a point 2,000 feet north of its 
intersection with Lincoln Street.  

d. U.S. Highway 218 northbound, from a point 410 feet north of its intersection with Lincoln Street 
north to the north city limits.  

(Code 2017, § 26-207; Ord. No. 1935, §§ 2, 3, 2-25-1991; Ord. No. 1981, §§ 1—5, 7-13-1992; Ord. No. 1982, § 1, 7-
13-1992; Ord. No. 2002, §§ 1, 2, 1-11-1993; Ord. No. 2005, §§ 1, 2, 2-22-1993; Ord. No. 2116, §§ 2, 3, 9-11-1995; 
Ord. No. 2199, § 1, 8-11-1997; Ord. No. 2238, §§ 1, 2, 6-22-1998; Ord. No. 2244, § 2, 10-12-1998; Ord. No. 2314, §§ 
1, 2, 11-13-2000; Ord. No. 2315, §§ 1—5, 11-13-2000; Ord. No. 2325, §§ 1—3, 2-12-2001; Ord. No. 2358, §§ 1—3, 
11-26-2001; Ord. No. 2402, §§ 1, 2, 11-25-2002; Ord. No. 2403, §§ 1, 2, 11-25-2002; Ord. No. 2440, §§ 1, 2, 7-14-
2003; Ord. No. 2451, §§ 1—3, 9-22-2003; Ord. No. 2543, §§ 1, 2, 8-22-2005; Ord. No. 2589, §§ 1—6, 7-10-2006; 
Ord. No. 2601, §§ 1, 2, 9-25-2006; Ord. No. 2704, §§ 1—3, 2-22-2010; Ord. No. 2732, § 1, 2-28-2011; Ord. No. 
2767, §§ 1—4, 6-11-2012; Ord. No. 2772, §§ 1, 2, 7-23-2012; Ord. No. 2835, §§ 1, 2, 2-2-2015; Ord. No. 2898, §§ 1, 
2, 3-20-2017; Ord. No. 2917, §§ 1, 2, 2-19-2018; Ord. No. 2927, 6-18-2018; Ord. No. 2957, §§ 1—3, 11-4-2019) 

 

23

Item 6.



   FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Public Records Division 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jacque Danielsen, City Clerk 

 DATE: July 20, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Parking Ordinance Amendments 

 
Please find attached proposed parking ordinance amendments that were discussed at 
the July 6, 2021 Committee of the Whole. This ordinance will reestablish four hours of 
free parking in the downtown municipal parking lots and continue paid parking in two 
municipal parking lots in the college hill area, except during the months of June & July. 
This ordinance will also allow for the permanent relocation of the College Hill Farmers 
Market. 
 
As mentioned during the July 6th Committee meeting, City Council could suspend the 
rules requiring ordinances to be considered at three separate meetings and pass 
Ordinance #2993 on its third & final consideration at the August 2, 2021 City Council 
meeting, which will closely align with the August 1st expiration date of the paid parking 
suspension. 
 
Please feel free to contact me with questions regarding these proposed amendments. 
Thank you. 
  
     

24

Item 7.



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Jacque Danielsen, City Clerk, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2993 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS OF DIVISION 2, 

PARKING ENFORCEMENT DISTRICTS, EQUIPMENT, OPERATIONS AND 

FACILITIES, OF ARTICLE IV, STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING, OF CHAPTER 

23, TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 23-413, PARKING TIME LIMITS IN PARKING 

ENFORCEMENT DISTRICTS, 23-415, PARKING VIOLATIONS, 23-422, PARKING 

PROHIBITED IN PORTIONS OF THE 22ND STREET WEST MUNICIPAL LOT DURING 

CERTAIN HOURS; AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF THE FOLLOWING 

SECTIONS OF DIVISION 2, PARKING ENFORCEMENT DISTRICTS, EQUIPMENT, 

OPERATIONS AND FACILITIES, OF ARTICLE IV, STOPPING, STANDING AND 

PARKING, OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 23-413, PARKING TIME 

LIMITS IN PARKING ENFORCEMENT DISTRICTS, 23-415, PARKING VIOLATIONS, 

23-422, FOUR-HOUR LIMIT ON PARKING IN CERTAIN PARKING SPACES IN 

CERTAIN MUNICIPAL LOTS, 23-423, PARKING PROHIBITED IN CERTAIN 

PARKING SPACES DURING CERTAIN HOURS.  

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

       Section 23-413, Parking time limits in parking enforcement districts, Section 23-415, 

Parking violations, and Section 23-422, Parking prohibited in portions of the 22nd street west 

municipal parking lot during certain hours, of Division 2, Parking Enforcement Districts, 

Equipment, Operations and Facilities, of Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking of 

Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, are hereby repealed in in their entirety and New Section 23-413, Parking time 

limits in parking enforcement districts, New Section 23-415, Parking violations, New Section 

23-422, Four-hour limit on parking in certain parking spaces in certain municipal parking 

lots, and New Section 23-423, Parking prohibited in certain parking spaces during certain 

hours, are enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

25

Item 7.



2 
 

Sec. 23-413. Parking time limits in parking enforcement districts. 

(a) Generally. 

(1) Except as otherwise provided in this division, unrestricted parking is allowed in a 
municipal lot unless a sign is posted by the city advising that the lot is a paid 
parking lot. If posted as a paid parking lot, parking is prohibited unless an 
appropriate city issued permit is purchased, or unless legal parking time is 
purchased by means of a parking meter, pay station or mobile application.  

(2) Except as otherwise provided in this division, unrestricted parking is allowed on a 
public street in a parking enforcement district unless a sign is posted by the city 
advising that a parking space is a paid parking space. If posted as a paid parking 
space, parking is prohibited unless legal parking time is purchased by means of a 
parking meter, pay station or mobile application.  

(3) Rates for paid parking in a parking enforcement district shall be adopted by 
resolution of the city council and appropriately posted giving notice of said rates.  

(4) The schedule of fines for violations of this division shall be in the same amount as 
stated in section 23-356.  

 (b) Enforcement times—College Hill parking enforcement district. 

When signs are posted giving notice thereof, parking or standing a vehicle in a paid 
parking space shall be restricted and enforced between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 
6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. The provisions of this section shall not apply on the 
following named holidays: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving 
Day and Christmas Day, and during the months of June and July.  

Sec. 23-415. Parking violations. 

It shall be unlawful and a violation of the provisions of this division for any person to:  

(1) Cause, allow, permit or suffer any vehicle registered in the name of or operated by 
such person to be parked overtime or beyond the period of legal parking time 
established or purchased.  

(2) Permit any vehicle to remain or be placed in a parking space beyond the period 
prescribed for such parking space. Moving a vehicle to another parking space 
within the same hundred block of the same street or within the same municipal 
parking lot that results in total cumulative parking time beyond the period 
prescribed for such parking space, shall be a violation.  

(3) Park any vehicle across any line or marking of a parking space or in such position 
that the vehicle is not entirely within the area designated by such lines or 
markings. Where angle or straight-in parking is provided, a vehicle must be parked 
entirely between the lines or markings with one of the front wheels of the vehicle 
touching the bumper block or curb, if one exists.  

(4) Deface, injure, tamper with, open or willfully break, destroy or impair the 
usefulness of any parking equipment or device installed under the provisions of 
this division. Violation of this provision shall be considered a simple misdemeanor 
as provided for in section 23-23.  

26

Item 7.



3 
 

Sec. 23-422. Four-hour limit on parking in certain parking spaces in certain municipal 

parking lots. 

Downtown parking enforcement district. 

(1) When signs are erected giving notice thereof, parking or standing a vehicle in a 
designated parking space shall be limited to a total of four hours of parking for 
each vehicle between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m., Monday thru 
Saturday, except on the following named holidays: New Year's Day, Memorial 
Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day, in the 
following municipal parking lots within the city:  

a. Second Street East municipal parking lot.  

b. Second Street West municipal parking lot. 

c. Third Street East municipal parking lot. 

d. Third Street West municipal parking lot. 

e. Fifth Street West municipal parking lot. 

(2) Each consecutive four-hour period during one calendar day that a vehicle remains 
illegally parked as provided in this subsection shall constitute a separate and 
distinct offense.  

Sec. 23-423. Parking prohibited in certain parking spaces during certain hours.  

When signs are erected giving notice thereof, parking or standing a vehicle shall be 
prohibited on Thursday afternoons only commencing with the first Thursday of June of each 
year and continuing through the last Thursday of October of each year during the hours of 
2:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. on the following portions of streets and municipal parking lots: 

a. Anywhere within the 22nd Street East-North municipal parking lot.  

b. West 22nd Street from Olive Street to College Street. 

 

INTRODUCED:     July 19, 2021   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   July 19, 2021   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

____________________________ 

       Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

27

Item 7.



Page 1 of 5 

CODE OF ORDINANCES 

CHAPTER 23 – TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES 

ARTICLE IV. STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING 

DIVISION 2. PARKING ENFORCEMENT DISTRICTS, EQUIPMENT, OPERATIONS AND 

FACILITIES 

Sec. 23-413. Parking time limits in parking enforcement districts. 

(a) Generally. 

(1) Except as otherwise provided in this division, Uunrestricted parking is allowed in a 
municipal lot unless a sign is posted by the city advising that the lot is a paid 
parking lot. If posted as a paid parking lot, parking is prohibited unless an 
appropriate city issued permit is purchased, or unless legal parking time is 
purchased by means of a parking meter, pay station or mobile application.  

(2) Except as otherwise provided in this division, unrestricted parking is allowed on a 
public street in a parking enforcement district unless a sign is posted by the city 
advising that a parking space is a paid parking space. If posted as a paid parking 
space, parking is prohibited unless legal parking time is purchased by means of a 
parking meter, pay station or mobile application.  

(3) Rates for paid parking in a parking enforcement district shall be adopted by 
resolution of the city council and appropriately posted giving notice of said rates.  

(4) The schedule of fines for violations of this division shall be in the same amount as 
stated in section 23-356.  

 (b) Enforcement times—Downtown parking enforcement district. 

When signs are posted giving notice thereof, parking or standing a vehicle in a paid 
parking space shall be restricted and enforced between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 
8:00 p.m., Monday through Saturday. The provisions of this subsection shall not apply 
on the following named holidays: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, 
Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.  

(c) Enforcement times—College Hill parking enforcement district. 

When signs are posted giving notice thereof, parking or standing a vehicle in a paid 
parking space shall be restricted and enforced between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 
6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. The provisions of this section shall not apply on the 
following named holidays: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor 
Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day, and during the months of June and July.  

Sec. 23-414. Use of funds collected from parking operations and enforcement. 

(a) Funds derived from the operation and enforcement of parking shall be used for the 
following purposes and none other:  

(1) Payment of the cost of acquisition, installation, maintenance, repair and operation 
of equipment, signs and other devices to regulate and enforce parking laws.  

28

Item 7.



 

Page 2 of 5 

(2) Payment of the cost of acquiring, by purchase, lease or similar arrangement, 
parking lots, facilities or other off-street parking areas, including operation, 
enlargement or improvement thereof or the facilities thereof, and widening or 
altering the streets to provide additional parking facilities.  

(3) Retirement of revenue bonds.  

(b) All revenues derived from parking enforcement operations not required for the payment 
of costs under subsection (a) of this section shall be expended for the improvement of 
existing facilities or the acquisition and improvement of additional off-street parking 
areas, provided that such funds may be retained and accumulated for such purpose for 
such length of time and in such amount as may be reasonably necessary to effectuate 
such program of acquisition of parking lots or other off-street parking areas.  

Sec. 23-415. Parking violations. 

It shall be unlawful and a violation of the provisions of this division for any person to:  

(1) Cause, allow, permit or suffer any vehicle registered in the name of or operated by 
such person to be parked overtime or beyond the period of legal parking time 
established or purchased.  

(2) Permit any vehicle to remain or be placed in a parking space beyond the period 
prescribed for such parking space. Moving a vehicle to another parking space 
within the same hundred block of the same street or within the same municipal 
parking lot that results in total cumulative parking time beyond the period 
prescribed for such parking space, shall be a violation.  

(3) Park any vehicle across any line or marking of a parking space or in such position 
that the vehicle is not entirely within the area designated by such lines or 
markings. Where angle or straight-in parking is provided, a vehicle must be parked 
entirely between the lines or markings with one of the front wheels of the vehicle 
touching the bumper block or curb, if one exists.  

(4) Deface, injure, tamper with, open or willfully break, destroy or impair the 
usefulness of any parking equipment or device installed under the provisions of 
this division. Violation of this provision shall be considered a simple misdemeanor 
as provided for in section 23-23.  

Sec. 23-416. Notice of parking violation. 

Parking enforcement personnel of the city shall attach to the vehicles in violation of this 
division a notice to the owner or operator thereof stating that such vehicle has been parked 
in violation of this division and informing the owner or operator of the amount of the fine, 
how the fine may be paid, and the penalty for failure to pay the fine.  

Sec. 23-417. Report of parking violations. 

It shall be the duty of the parking enforcement personnel of the city, acting in 
accordance with instructions issued by the city clerk and as approved by the council, to 
report the following:  

(1) The location of the vehicle that is or has been parking in violation of any of the 
provisions of this division.  

29

Item 7.



 

Page 3 of 5 

(2) The state license number of such vehicle.  

(3) The time during which such vehicle is parking in violation of any of the provisions 
of this division.  

(4) Any other facts which are necessary to a thorough understanding of the 
circumstances attending such violation.  

Sec. 23-418. Parking permits for municipal parking lots or parking facilities. 

Generally. The owner or operator of a motor vehicle may obtain a parking permit for 
use in the off-street municipal parking lots or facilities. Parking permits may be assigned to 
a specific parking lot or facility, and may vary in price. Parking permit fees shall be 
established from time to time by resolution of the city council. The parking permit is to be 
displayed in the lower left-hand corner of the windshield of the vehicle unless the owner or 
operator of the vehicle has properly registered the license plate of the vehicle with the 
parking enforcement agency designated by the city. The purchase and proper 
display/registration of a parking permit, as required in this subsection shall entitle the motor 
vehicle to be parked in the designated off-street municipal parking lot or facility for a period 
of up to 48 consecutive hours without penalty for overtime parking.  

Sec. 23-419. Two-hour limit on parking in certain parking spaces on certain streets. 

(a) Downtown parking enforcement district. 

(1) When signs are erected giving notice thereof, parking or standing a vehicle in a 
designated parking space shall be limited to a total of two hours of parking 
between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m., Monday thru Saturday, except on 
the following named holidays: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, 
Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day, on the following streets or 
portions of streets within the city:  

a. Main Street from First Street to Sixth Street.  

(2) Each consecutive two-hour period during one calendar day that a vehicle remains 
illegally parked as provided in this subsection shall constitute a separate and 
distinct offense.  

(b) College Hill parking enforcement district. 

(1) When signs are erected giving notice thereof, parking or standing a vehicle in a 
designated parking space shall be limited to a total of two hours of parking 
between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., Monday thru Friday, except on the 
following named holidays: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, 
Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day, on the following streets or 
portions of streets within the city:  

a. College Street from 20
th 

Street to 22
nd 

Street  

b. 23rd Street from that portion of said street adjacent to 1019 West 23rd Street 
west to Merner Avenue.  

c. Anywhere within the 22
nd 

Street East - North and 20
th 

Street East - Plaza 
municipal parking lots.  

30

Item 7.



 

Page 4 of 5 

(2) Each consecutive two-hour period during one calendar day that a vehicle remains 
illegally parked as provided in this subsection shall constitute a separate and 
distinct offense.  

Sec. 23-420. Three-hour limit on parking in certain parking spaces on certain streets. 

Downtown parking enforcement district. 

(1) When signs are erected giving notice thereof, parking or standing a vehicle in a 
designated parking space shall be limited to a total of three hours of parking 
between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m., Monday thru Saturday, except on 
the following named holidays: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, 
Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day, on the following streets or 
portions of streets within the city:  

a. Second Street from State Street to Clay Street.  

b. Third Street from State Street to Clay Street.  

c. Fourth Street from State Street to Washington Street.  

d. Fifth Street from State Street to Washington Street.  

e. State Street from Second Street to Fourth Street.  

f. Washington Street from First Street to Sixth Street.  

g. Sixth Street from Washington Street west to the alley between Clay Street 
and Washington Street.  

(2) Each consecutive three-hour period during one calendar day that a vehicle 
remains illegally parked as provided in this subsection shall constitute a separate 
and distinct offense.  

Sec. 23-421. One-hour limit on parking in certain parking spaces. 

College Hill parking enforcement district. 

(1) When signs are erected giving notice thereof, parking or standing a vehicle in a 
designated parking space shall be limited to a total of one hour of parking for each 
vehicle between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., Monday thru Friday, except 
on the following named holidays: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence 
Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day, on the following portions 
of streets within the city:  

a. 23rd Street from College Street west to and including that portion of West 
23rd Street adjacent to 1009 West 23rd Street.  

b. College Street from 22nd Street to 23rd Street.  

c. Within the 23
rd 

Street East municipal parking lot.  

(2) Each consecutive one-hour period during one calendar day that a vehicle remains 
illegally parked as provided in this subsection shall constitute a separate and 
distinct offense.  

31

Item 7.



 

Page 5 of 5 

 

NEW SECTION 

Sec. 23-422. Four-hour limit on parking in certain parking spaces in certain municipal 

parking lots. 

Downtown parking enforcement district. 

(1) When signs are erected giving notice thereof, parking or standing a vehicle in a 
designated parking space shall be limited to a total of four hours of parking for 
each vehicle between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m., Monday thru 
Saturday, except on the following named holidays: New Year's Day, Memorial 
Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day, in the 
following municipal parking lots within the city:  

a. Second Street East municipal parking lot.  

b. Second Street West municipal parking lot. 

c. Third Street East municipal parking lot. 

d. Third Street West municipal parking lot. 

e. Fifth Street West municipal parking lot. 

(2) Each consecutive four-hour period during one calendar day that a vehicle remains 
illegally parked as provided in this subsection shall constitute a separate and 
distinct offense.  

 

Sec. 23-4232. Parking prohibited in portions of certain parking spaces the 22
nd 

street 

west municipal parking lot during certain hours.  

(1) When signs are erected giving notice thereof, parking or standing a vehicle shall 
be prohibited in the 20 angled parking spaces located in the northeast leg of the 
22

nd 
Street West municipal parking lot on Thursday afternoons only commencing 

with the first Thursday of June of each year and continuing through the last 
Thursday of October of each year during the hours of 2:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. on 
the following portions of streets and municipal parking lots: 

 a. Anywhere within the 22
nd

 Street East-North municipal parking lot.  

 b. West 22
nd

 Street from Olive Street to College Street. 

 

32

Item 7.



33

Item 8.



CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
Cedar Falls Council Chambers 

July 19, 2021 
 
The City Council held a special work session at City Hall at 5:20 p.m. on July 19, 2021, 
with the following persons in attendance:  Mayor Rob Green, Frank Darrah, Kelly Dunn, 
Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, Dave Sires.  Staff members attended from all 
City Departments.  Human Rights Commission members  and members of the 
community attended the meeting and teleconferenced in.  Absent:  Susan deBuhr. 
 
Mayor Green introduced the first item on the agenda, Northern Cedar Falls Drainage. 
 
Mayor Green introduced Director of Public Works Chase Shrage.  Mr. Schrage stated at 
last year’s goal setting, City Council had consensus to hear a proposal in regard to 
Cedar River Drainage, specifically at Island Park.  Mr. Schrage introduced Mr. Dennis 
Pruckler, 2221 Center Street, to present.  Mr. Pruckler referenced his slideshow and 
sources to explain the idea of working with nature to lessen floodwaters and damages.  
He stated the main issue at Island Park is flooding; Island Park has 2500 feet of 
riverfront including wetlands which if recreated would be prime wildlife habitat and have 
soil that removes nitrates (cleans the water).  He presented a triple-win proposal for 
nature-based solutions.  He shared maps of the Cedar River from 1887 showing a cutoff 
channel (Snag Creek) around what is now Island Park which redirected floodwaters; 
currently there is a cutoff dam there higher than the park.  Mr. Pruckler presented a 
demonstration of water flow and retention with one channel versus two channels and 
explained how it would alleviate water in the main channel, feed the wetlands, clean the 
water, and reduce flow downstream; currently floodwater is reaching the blocked 
channel through adjoining neighborhoods and across Island Park, causing damage that 
could potentially be avoided.  He stated the Iowa Department of Natural Resources 
(DNR) recommends reducing dams to optimal level, optionally converting them to 
recreational attractions such as kayak runs.  He stated river water should be flowing into 
Snag Creek with Island Park as an access point, flowing through the wetlands and 
being cleaned, before flowing back into the main channel.  He named some potential 
funding sources.  He explained looking at the 500 year flood plan, north of the City the 
Cedar River historically emptied into Big Woods Creek and re-opening should be 
considered in future plans. 
 
Mayor Green opened Council discussion.  Councilmember Miller stated the project 
scope is broad; what are the maintenance costs of flooding to Island Park and can they 
be reduced and lessen burden on Public Works while considering impact of more water 
to Snag Creek; he questioned if culverts could be considered in the dam.  Mr. Pruckler 
stated Iowa DNR has offered to do studies for free.  Councilmember Harding agreed 
with Mr. Miller and requested Iowa DNR look at it to determine next steps. 
 
Mayor Green requested a consensus to proceed with study and research funding 
options; Mayor sees a consensus.  Councilmember Sires recommended reviewing 
Waverly’s bladder dam as an option. 

34

Item 9.



 
Mayor Green introduced the second item on the agenda, Human Rights Commission – 

Joint Meeting. 

Mayor Green introduced HRC Chairperson Susan Langan and Vice Chairperson 

Eashaan Vajpeyi.  Mayor Green introduced the first HRC topic, Complaint Process.  Ms. 

Langan introduced the members of the HRC.  She stated the HRC has undergone two 

trainings with the Iowa Civil Rights Commission (ICRC) for the complaint process, an 

overview and a more specific training to assist citizens completing the claim form; she 

stressed the importance of HRC members knowing the correct questions to ask and 

also getting word out that the HRC exists.  Councilmember Dunn questioned where the 

complaint form is obtained; Ms. Langan responded either City Human Resources 

Manager Toni Babcock or the ICRC website.  Councilmember Dunn asked if citizens 

reach out to Councilmembers or City staff will they be put in touch with HRC; Ms. 

Langan responded yes.  Ms. Langan stated some members of the HRC are confident in 

helping citizens complete the form; Mayor Green asked if the goal is for all members to 

be able to do so; Ms. Langan responded yes, and training will continue.  Mayor asked if 

the claim goes straight to ICRC is there follow-up with the HRC; Mr. Vajpeyi stated once 

the ICRC has they claim, they make the determination; the HRC is only involved as the 

initial entity for claims.  Councilmember Miller asked if probable cause is found, does 

the ICRC inform the HRC; Ms. Langan responded no but stated the HRC could 

potentially be involved in the process and would also be dependent on how much the 

complainant shared with the HRC.  Ms. Langan stated the ICRC can provide the HRC 

with general information on complaints in the area.  Councilmember Harding asked if 

the HRC is more supportive than investigative in its current role, how is that being 

presented to the community?  Ms. Langan responded that HRC members have ties to 

various groups in the community and the HRC has social media platforms.  

Councilmember Dunn asked if the HRC has contact information on the City website; 

Director of Finance and Business Operations Jennifer Rodenbeck responded yes, links 

to HRC member contact information and the ICRC are on the City website.  Mayor 

Green introduced the second HRC topic, Listening Post for Public Safety Complaints.  

Mr. Vajpeyi explained the HRC goal to engage with citizens and give them a place to air 

concerns about Public Safety staff in an informal setting where citizens can feel heard 

and seen within non-judgmental, appropriate boundaries; the HRC will not decide what 

does or doesn’t constitute a claim in this role.  Councilmember Harding asked about 

confidentiality; Mr. Vajpeyi stated he’d advise commission members to let the citizen set 

the sharing boundary.  Councilmember Dunn asked how information from HRC or ICRC 

about complaints is shared with City Council; Mr. Vajpeyi replied that formal complaints 

will be forwarded to Council whereas informal listening post complaints will likely be a 

report by number or type of complaint, not yet determined.  He stated that information 

from ICRC will come to Council in work sessions and suggested the HRC give more 

35

Item 9.



status updates to Council.  Councilmember Dunn asked if there is confidentiality specific 

to Public Safety officers; City Administrator Ron Gaines replied yes, under state code 

§80F, and confidentiality is based on severity of the complaint; Mayor Green stated it 

ties to protection for the officer.  Councilmember Darrah asked if the listening post is a 

work in progress; Mr. Vajpeyi stated yes, from the last HRC meeting.  Councilmember 

Harding suggested Council may want to discuss having a full-time Human Rights 

person on City staff; he suggested the HRC recommend ways Council can assist with 

resolving complaints.  Ms. Langan stated that in the new supportive role, general 

situational data can be provided to council.  Mayor Green introduced the third HRC 

topic, Spearhead Communication on Racial Equity Issues.  Ms. Langan stated the topic 

goes with the listening post and sharing information with Council and the community 

about the HRC’s role.  She stated the HRC extends invitations to its trainings while 

following new Iowa regulations on trainings.  She stated the HRC utilizes a video series 

at meetings to facilitate discussion and invites Council to watch and join the 

discussions.  She stated the HRC had a table at the Juneteenth Cedar Falls Farmer’s 

Market and will collaborate with Cedar Falls High School at a table for Waterloo’s Pride 

Fest in August.  She stated the HRC has dedicated Facebook and Twitter pages 

currently sharing community events.  Councilmembers Miller and Harding 

recommended updates to the City website’s HRC page, a link to file a complaint and a 

contact for a dedicated City Human Rights staff, which is not a current position.  Ms. 

Langan agreed with Councilmember Darrah’s earlier comment that having a specific 

process will be important.  HRC member Mario Basurto asked about minorities in the 

City and if there were communication tools in place for those that do not speak English 

as a first language; he stated there are challenges meeting only once a month.  

Councilmember Dunn stated the Cedar Falls Racial Equity Task Force (RETF) has 

demographic data to be shared; she asked if interpretation services are available to the 

HRC.  Director Rodenbeck stated not currently.  Mr. Vajpeyi suggested seeking training 

for working with individuals for whom English is a second language; Councilmember 

Dunn stressed the importance of preventing communication breakdowns due to 

language barriers.  Mr. Basurto stated the HRC’s role is to make sure claims are 

forwarded appropriately.  Councilmember Harding asked if more frequent meetings are 

needed, how is that changed; Staff Liaison Toni Babcock stated the by-laws would need 

to be updated.  Mayor Green introduced the fourth HRC topic, Invitation to HRC 

Training.  Ms. Langan states that trainings have been covered speaking about other 

topics. 

There being no further discussion, Mayor Green adjourned the meeting at 6:55 p.m. 
 
Minutes by Katie Terhune, Administrative Assistant 
 

36

Item 9.



37

Item 10.



38

Item 10.



39

Item 10.



40

Item 10.



41

Item 10.



42

Item 10.



43

Item 10.



44

Item 10.



45

Item 10.



46

Item 10.



47

Item 10.



48

Item 10.



49

Item 10.



50

Item 10.



51

Item 10.



52

Item 10.



53

Item 10.



54

Item 10.



55

Item 10.



56

Item 10.



57

Item 10.



58

Item 10.



59

Item 10.



60

Item 10.



61

Item 10.



62

Item 10.



63

Item 10.



64

Item 10.



65

Item 10.



66

Item 10.



67

Item 10.



68

Item 10.



69

Item 10.



70

Item 10.



71

Item 10.



72

Item 10.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director 

Craig Berte, Police Chief 

Date:  July 26, 2021 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Smokin Oak Wood Fired Pizza, 1525 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class B beer – 
renewal. 

b) Vintage Iron, 104 Main Street, Class B wine – renewal. 

c) Kwik Star, 4515 Coneflower Parkway, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 

d) The Black Hawk Hotel/Bar Winslow/Carter House Market & Cafe, 115-119 Main 
Street, Class B liquor, Class B wine & outdoor service - renewal. 

e) Octopus, 2205 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

f) Texas Roadhouse, 5715 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal. 

g) Panther Travel Center, 1525 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class E liquor – renewal. 

h) Fast Track Racing, 100 Block of Clay Street, Class B beer & outdoor service - 5-
day permit. 

 

 

73

Item 11.



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 

RESOLUTION RESCINDING RESOLUTION #22,201, BEING A RESOLUTION 
APPROVING AND ADOPTING PUBLIC MEETING PROTOCOLS FOR THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS DURING THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC 
 
 

 WHEREAS, during the COVID-19 pandemic, the City determined that 

safety protocols were necessary to ensure the safety and well-being of the 

public, city employees and elected officials who attend City Council meetings, 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, City Council adopted Resolution #22,201, approving and 

adopting public meeting protocols as a standard for in-person attendance at City 

Council meetings, and 

 

 WHEREAS, on July 23, 2021, Governor Reynolds allowed the suspension 

of any requirement for governmental bodies to hold a public hearing or public 

meeting by electronic means, to expire. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, that Resolution #22,201 is hereby rescinded. 

 

 ADOPTED this 2nd day of August, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:         
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

74

Item 12.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: July 27, 2021 

 SUBJECT:  Civil Service Testing – Professional Service Agreement 

 
Council may be aware that during the 2021 Iowa Legislative Session, Senate File 342 
was signed into law by Governor Reynolds.  As part of this bill, also known as the “Back 
the Blue” law, there were changes made to Iowa Code Chapter 400 concerning Civil 
Service hiring procedures.  It now requires that the Civil Service hire someone “with 
expertise” to both “prepare and administer” the entrance and promotional examinations 
approved by the Commission.   
 
To comply with this new legislation, the City contacted Carlson Dettmann who 
performed the pay plan study for the City and the market update study for the City to 
see if they would be able to provide this new service to the City’s Civil Service 
Commission.  It made sense to contact Carlson Dettmann who is already familiar with 
the job classifications of the City and currently still provides review of job classifications 
when new positions are created at the City.   
 
After talking with Carlson Dettmann, they are proposing to charge $275 per civil service 
job testing evaluation.  Their evaluation services will include the following: 
 
 

 Review the exam for its relevance to the job description. 

 Review the exam style and questions for simplicity and efficiency in terms of 
being able to easily and fairly score the exam, and to eliminate potential bias in 
the style.  

 Review the associated numerical scoring tool to confirm it is as objective as 
possible. 

 Confirm the raters proposed to score the exam are appropriate. 
 
We believe working with Carlson Dettmann to administer the civil service process will 
ensure that the civil service testing continues to be a fair and equitable process and will 
allow the City’s Civil Service Commission to be in compliance with the new law.   After 
review and approval by the City Council, the contract will then be sent to the Civil 
Service Commission for their approval before executing the contract.  
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.  
 

75

Item 13.



 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IA 

AND  
CARLSON DETTMANN CONSULTING 

 
This professional service agreement (hereinafter the “Agreement”) is made and entered into by and 
between the City of Cedar Falls, IA (hereinafter “the Client”) and Carlson Dettmann Consulting, a division 

of Cottingham & Butler Insurance Services, Inc., an Iowa corporation (hereinafter “Consultant”). 

WHEREAS, Client wishes to enter into an agreement with Consultant to provide professional 

employment consulting services.   

WHEREAS, Consultant is familiar with Client’s organization and has an established history of providing 

similar services and is willing to provide the above-referenced professional consulting services to the 

Client.  

THEREFORE, the Client and Consultant agree to the following: 

1. Term. The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of the last signature of this Agreement 

and remain in force for one year from last signature date with an option to renew annually if 

consent by both parties.  

2. Scope of Services. The Consultant shall provide to the Client consulting services as follows: 

a) Civil Service Exam Review:  

a. Consultant will review the exam for its relevance to the job description / JDQ. 

b. Consultant will review the exam style and questions for simplicity and efficiency and 

eliminate potential bias in the style (e.g. essay versus multiple choice). 

c. Consultant will review the associated numerical scoring tool to confirm it is as objective 

as possible. 

d. Consultant will review the raters proposed to score the exam to ensure they are 

appropriate. 

3. Project Fees.  Client shall pay the Consultant at the following rates for services agreed upon: 

a) Civil Service Reviews:  Jobs submitted to Consultant for review shall be charged at $275 per 

evaluation. Invoices will be sent on a monthly basis. 

b) Services Outside of Scope. Consulting services agreed upon that are greater than the scope 

of this Agreement shall be at Consultant’s normal hourly rate of $250 unless agreed upon 

otherwise by the Client and Consultant. However, subject to scheduling and mutual 

agreement, meetings conducted by telephone and/or web conference are not subject to any 

additional fee. 

4. Performance Requirements of Consultant. The Consultant shall complete the services as 

stated above. The Consultant shall furnish all labor, materials, administration, services, supplies, 

equipment, transportation, and quality control necessary to provide professional consulting 

services. Consultant shall provide progress reports upon request by the Client.  

76

Item 13.



 
 

 

5. Performance Requirements of Client. The Client shall provide and make available to the 

Consultant access to its human resources, civil services, and related systems of record as 

necessary to fulfill said services.  

6. Independent Contractor. It is mutually understood and agreed, and it is the intent of the parties 

hereto, that an independent contractor relationship be and is hereby established under the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement. The Consultant shall remain an independent contractor 

under this Agreement. All employees of Consultant or subcontractors shall remain the 

responsibility of the Consultant and shall not become employees of the Client under this 

Agreement. No tenure or any rights or benefits, including worker’s compensation, unemployment 
insurance, medical care, sick leave, vacation leave, severance pay, withholding taxes or other 

benefits available to Client employees shall accrue to the Consultant or its employees performing 

services under this Agreement.  

7. Indemnification. The Consultant agrees it shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Client, 

its officers, and its employees against any and all liability, losses, costs, damages, and expenses, 

including attorney fees that the Client, its officers or its employees, may hereafter sustain, incur 

or be required to pay arising out of the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of the 

Consultant, its officers or employees, in the performance of its duties under this Agreement. The 

Client agrees it shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Consultant, its officers, and its 

employees against any and all liability, losses, costs, damages, and expenses, including attorney 

fees that the Consultant, its officers or its employees, may hereafter sustain, incur or be required 

to pay arising out of the: (i) negligent or intentional acts or omissions of the Client, its officers or 

employees; and (ii) any allegation that Client’s civil service program or structure is administered 

in any way noncompliant with local, state or federal law. 

8. Confidential Client Information. Consultant agrees to keep confidential information and data 

provided by Client to Consultant for the purpose of enabling Consultant to complete the Scope 

of Work detailed above.  

9. Insurance Coverage.  Consultant is required to carry professional liability insurance coverage 

that would cover the nature and type of service that is being provided to the Client, and 

Consultant will provide proof of insurance coverage prior to the execution of this agreement. 

10. Assignment. Neither party may assign or transfer this Agreement, or any part thereof, without 

the written consent of the other party, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

11. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable, such 

provision shall be fully severable and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such 

illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision had never comprised a part of the Agreement. The 

remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect and shall not be affected by the illegal, 

invalid or unenforceable provision or by its severance. 

12. Interpretation of Law. This contract is to be interpreted under the laws of the State of Wisconsin. 

13. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the parties and 

supersedes all prior arrangements and/or understandings, whether written or oral, with respect 

to the subject matter contained in this Agreement.  

77

Item 13.



 
 

 

14. No Third Party Claim.  This agreement is not intended to create in the public or any member of 

the public third party beneficiary status or to authorize anyone not a party to this Agreement to 

maintain a suit or claim of any nature whatsoever. 

 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IA 

 
By:        
 
      
 
Date:       
 
 
CARLSON DETTMANN CONSULTING  

 
By: 

      
Patrick W. Glynn, Senior Consultant 
 
Date:   

78

Item 13.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

 M E M O R A N D U M 

  

  

 

  

 
 
 

 TO: The Honorable Mayor Green and City Council 

 FROM: Heather Skeens, Cultural Programs Supervisor 

 DATE: August 2, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Intent to Apply for American Rescue Plan funding via the National 

Endowment for the Arts 

In addition to American Rescue Plan (ARP) funds being distributed to municipalities, the 
National Endowment for the Arts (NEA) announced it will competitively award ARP funds to 
eligible arts and culture organizations nationwide. Individual organizations are allowed to apply 
at one of three levels: $50,000; $100,000; or $150,000. (The grant is “all or nothing” with no 
partial awards.) Funding priorities/allowable costs outlined by the NEA include: staff positions 
(current or new), fees to artists and contracted personnel, facilities (mortgage and rent), and 
marketing/promotion of the venue and services. The Hearst Center plans to apply at the 
$100,000 level within the following areas: 

 Marketing: development of a two-year marketing plan with specific emphasis on 
reaching new audiences, developing strong messaging linked to the arts and 
public/personal health, and ramping up visibility as we move into Hearst 2.0 planning 
and fundraising. ($40,000) 
 

 Artist fees/Equipment: inviting large-scale rented exhibitions to the Hearst Center, 
working with more visiting artists for workshops and public events, and augmenting 
current programs and classes by engaging more local and regional artists as instructors. 
We may also be able to use this funding to purchase works by currently-practicing local 
and regional artists for the collection, with a specific emphasis in BIPOC artists. 
($30,000) 
 

 Collection Registration: PT seasonal position for calendar year 2022 to assist with 
standardizing entries within our collection database (PastPerfect), updating files, and 
photographing the collection. This work is finite; once complete, it will allow the Hearst 
a better picture of the collection’s health, identify works in need of conservation, 
identify gaps in the collection for future consideration, and identify works that could be 

79

Item 14.



deaccessioned. This work may also allow the Hearst to make the collection 
searchable/viewable publically via the Hearst website. 
 

The application process is phased. The initial application is due August 12, 2021. Funds can be 
used as early as January 1, 2022, and can support up to two years of expenditures.  
 
If you have any questions about our application or areas we are requesting to support, please 
feel free to contact me for discussion. 
 
CC: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 Kim Manning, Visitors & Tourism and Cultural Programs Manager 

80

Item 14.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council  

 FROM: Thomas Weintraut, Planner III 

 DATE: July 26, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Cedar River Recreation Project – A Resolution in Support of the Otto 
Schoitz Foundation Grant Application 

 
A Riverfront Master Plan was developed in 2017 for the area between Center Street 
and 1St Street. The Cedar River Recreation Project is the first step in the realization of 
the Master Plan.  The City is now preparing to submit a request of $50,000 to the Otto 
Schoitz Foundation for funding. The City’s FY22-26 CIP #56 outlines the project funding 
to implement this project, in partnership with Cedar River Experience and other funding 
sources, including a grant of $1.5 M from the Black Hawk County Gaming Association 
and a $75,000 grant from Iowa Great Places. A Letter of Intent was submitted on July 
15, 2021. We have been invited to submit a full application; a resolution of support from 
the local jurisdiction will be part of that submittal. 
 
The project includes in-stream and on-bank improvements, the removal debris from a 
low-head dam, and the construction of a series of jetties. The on-bank improvements 
will include terraces to stabilize the riverbanks, trail connections from Peter Melendy 
and Gateway Parks, and a River Art Plaza.  
 
Staff recommends the City Council approve a resolution of support for the Otto Schoitz 
Foundation grant application.  The application deadline is August 20, 2021.  Awards will 
be announced in November 2021. Funding dependent, the goal is to bid the project 
construction in fall 2021.  Construction is ideal in late Fall/early Winter, for in-river parts 
of the project. 
 
Attachments:   Pictures 

Plan Overview 
  River Art Plaza Elevation 
  River Art Plaza Birds Eye View 
   
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

81

Item 15.



 
Looking South from Main Street along the Gateway Park riverbank 

 

 
A view of the Clay Hole and remaining portion of the low head dam 

 

82

Item 15.



 
View of the riverbank at the 1st Street Bridge 

  

83

Item 15.



 
 
Plan Overview 

 

84

Item 15.



 

 
River Art Plaza Elevation 

 
 
 

85

Item 15.



 
River Art Plaza Birds Eye View 

 

86

Item 15.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council  

 FROM: Thomas Weintraut, Planner III 

 DATE: July 26, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Cedar River Recreation Project – A resolution in support of the Iowa 
Department of Natural Resource, Resource Enhancement and Protection 
(REAP) Grant 

 
In 2017, a Riverfront Master Plan was developed for the area between Center Street 
and 1St Street. The Cedar River Recreation Project is the first step in the realization of 
the Master Plan.  The City is now preparing to submit a request to the Iowa Department 
of Natural Resources for funding through the REAP program with a funding request of 
$150,000. The City’s FY22-26 CIP #56 outlines the project funding to implement this 
project under Federal and State funding sources, in partnership with Cedar River 
Experience and other funding sources, including a grant of $1.5M from the Black Hawk 
County Gaming Association and a $75,000 from Iowa Great Places. If awarded, the 
$150,000 support from the State would be 3.6% of the project.  A full application will be 
submitted in late-August and a resolution of support from the local jurisdiction is part of 
that submittal.  
 
The project includes in-stream and on-bank improvements to the river beginning at the 
Main Street Bridge and continuing downstream south of the 1St Street Bridge. A 
significant in-stream safety improvement is the removal of broken concrete and steel 
rebar, remnants of a low-head dam, at the Clay Hole near Gateway Park. The 
remaining concrete portion of the dam will be repurposed into a jetty/deflector to divide 
the stream flow into three “channels” to allow recreation areas for people of different 
skill levels to float through and to park and play.  Other in-stream improvements include 
four additional jetties on each side of the river to create waves for recreation and pools 
for play. There will be “put ins” on both sides of the river south of the Main Street Bridge 
and corresponding “take outs” south of the 1st Street Bridge.    
 
On-bank improvements will include terraces constructed with boulders to stabilize the 
riverbanks and provide path and trail connections from Peter Melendy and Gateway 
Parks.  On the Gateway Park side of the River is the River Art Plaza designed to be a 

87

Item 16.



place to watch activities and offer an educational experience by showing how the 
stream channel was formed and the connection Cedar Falls has to communities up and 
down the river. In addition, this area will explain the river ecology and its role in the 
history of human, plant and animal development.   
 
Staff recommends the City Council approve a resolution of support for the REAP grant 
application.  The application deadline is August 30, 2021 and awards will be announced 
in late 2021. The goal is to bid the project construction in Fall 2021.  Construction is 
ideal in late Fall/early Winter, for in-river parts of the project. 
 
 
Attachments:   Pictures 

Plan Overview 
  River Art Plaza Elevation 
  River Art Plaza Birds Eye View 
   
   

 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

88

Item 16.



 
Looking South from Main Street along the Gateway Park riverbank 

 

 
A view of the Clay Hole and remaining portion of the low head dam 

 

89

Item 16.



 
View of the riverbank at the 1st Street Bridge 

  

90

Item 16.



 
 
Plan Overview 

 

91

Item 16.



 

 
River Art Plaza Elevation 

 
 
 

92

Item 16.



 
River Art Plaza Birds Eye View 

 

93

Item 16.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 
 

  

  

 

 
 
   

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: July 26, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Amendment to Contract on State Award of CARES Act Community 
Development Block Grant Funds (CDBG-CV2)  

 
In January 2021, Council approved a request to the State for a contract on a number of 
eligible activities for the State award of CDBG-CV2 funds.  Council may recall that an 
award of CARES Act CDBG funds to the State was proportionally allocated to 
Entitlement Communities in May 2020.  The State notified Cedar Falls that it would 
receive $369,432.  In January, we requested a contract for $341,608.00 of the CDBG-
CV2 funding.   
 
Staff has identified several changes to the contract that would increase our CDBG-CV2 
contract by $5,142.06.  This addition is for not only the 8 Chromebooks originally in the 
grant request, but also to include covers for 10 Chromebooks purchased just before this 
grant as well as the licenses for a total of 18 new Chromebooks ordered in response to 
the pandemic.  The City is also requesting funding for two Owl 360° camera, 
microphone, and speaker for ease of remote/hybrid meetings in our conference rooms.  
As we continue to implement the programs and services under this grant, subsequent 
amendments will occur.  Cedar Falls has $22,681.94 of unallocated CDBG-CV2 funds 
remaining.  The main criteria of the CDBG-CV2 funding are: prepare, respond, prevent 
related to the pandemic, 70% to Low-Moderate Income activities (a National Objective 
of the CDBG program), 80% of funding to be spent by 7/20/23, all funds must be 
expended by 7/20/25. 
 
The following table updates how the funds would be allocated. 
 

 
Amount  Project Delivery   Total  

Service Agencies  $     115,000.00   $     10,842.00  $    125,842.00  
City $       80,572.06 $     14,592.00 $      95,164.06 

Schools  $     111,152.00  $    14,592.00   $    125,744.00 

   
$    346,750.06   

 

94

Item 17.



Contracts with Service Agencies and Schools have all been approved.  Each of these 
contracts is being monitored as implementation occurs.  The City began purchase of 
software and equipment included in the “City” portion of the funding outline.  As a result, 
this amendment is proposed. 
 
No other changes are proposed at this time to the previously approved State contract.  
Staff recommends approving the changes and authorizing the Mayor to send a letter to 
the State with the proposed amendment.  
 
Please contact staff with any questions.  Thank you.  
 
Xc:   Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 
 Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager      
 Michelle Pezley, Planner III 

95

Item 17.



 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

     VISITORS & TOURISM/  

PLANNING & COMMUNITY SERVICES INSPECTION SERVICES RECREATION & COMMUNITY PROGRAMS CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
220 CLAY STREET 220 CLAY STREET  110 E. 13TH STREET  6510 HUDSON ROAD 
PH: 319-273-8606 PH: 319-268-5161 PH: 319-273-8636 PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-268-5126 FAX: 319-268-5197 FAX: 319-273-8656 FAX: 319-277-9707 

 

 
 
 
 
  
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Green & City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: July 20, 2021 

 SUBJECT: CDBG FFY20-21 Sidewalk Infill Project 
  City Project Number 3248 (SW-000-CD) 
  Temporary Construction Easements 
 
 
Since the January 19, 2021 Council Committee presentation on a potential CDBG 
FFY20-21 Sidewalk Infill Project for 2021, project plans have been developed and 
contact with some owners has been made for locations where temporary grading 
easements would be appropriate.  The project consists of the following sidewalk infill 
locations: 

 W 3rd St. (Francis St. to Hudson Road on North side of street) 

 Tucson Dr. (Idaho Rd. to Orchard Dr. on the East side of street) 

 Walnut St. (West 20th St. to West 21st St. on both sides of street) 
 
Four foot wide sidewalks are planned in these areas.  Temporary grading easements 
have been sought for four properties along W. 3rd Street and one property on Tucson, to 
provide a better transition from public to private property that is easier to maintain. 
 
The remaining two Temporary Easement Agreements are attached for review and 
consideration to approve.  We anticipate receiving the remaining signed easements for 
consideration at a future meeting. 

Address Owner 
Area  

(sq. ft.) 
Compensation 

Estimate 

1405 W 3rd St.  Craig Larsen 660 $699.60 

1509 W 3rd St.  Valerie Hillner 660 $699.60 

 
The Planning Division recommends approval of the Temporary Construction Easements 
for the FFY20-21 Sidewalk Infill Project, including recording the easements at the Black 
Hawk County Recorder’s Office and processing payment for their value. 

 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 

96

Item 18.



97

Item 18.



98

Item 18.



99

Item 18.



100

Item 18.



101

Item 18.



102

Item 18.



 Our Citizens are Our Business  

 
 
 
 
  
 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Green and City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: July 21, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Habitat HOME Project: 913 Bluff Street 

 
 
In February 2021, the City entered into a Community Housing Development 
Organization (CHDO) agreement with the City of Waterloo, allowing Iowa Heartland 
Habitat for Humanity to utilize up to $361,246 of Cedar Falls-specific funds to complete 
a variety of projects in Cedar Falls.  These projects are anticipated over the next one 
and half years. The first project is an acquisition and home rehabilitation project at 913 
Bluff Street. 
 
Iowa Heartland Habitat for Humanity will acquire 913 Bluff Street utilizing HOME 
funding. HOME funding and Iowa Heartland resources will then be used for the 
following: bathroom and kitchen updates, flooring replacement, window repairs, and 
exterior updates. An eligible and qualified low-income family in Iowa Heartland’s 
affordable homeownership program will move into the 3-bedroom home once the 
rehabilitation work is complete.   
 
This property was built in 1915 and therefore should be exempt from the federal Lead 
Safe Housing Rule. SHPO has received the local assessment and Habitat is waiting for 
comment.   
 
The Department of Community Development recommends the City Council approve the 
contract for work at 913 Bluff Street in the amount of $106,418.00.  
 
Please contact me with any questions.  Thank you. 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

     VISITORS & TOURISM/  

PLANNING & COMMUNITY SERVICES INSPECTION SERVICES RECREATION & COMMUNITY PROGRAMS CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
220 CLAY STREET 220 CLAY STREET  110 E. 13TH STREET  6510 HUDSON ROAD 
PH: 319-273-8606 PH: 319-268-5161 PH: 319-273-8636 PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-268-5126 FAX: 319-268-5197 FAX: 319-273-8656 FAX: 319-277-9707 

 

103

Item 19.



104

Item 19.



105

Item 19.



106

Item 19.



107

Item 19.



108

Item 19.



109

Item 19.



110

Item 19.



111

Item 19.



112

Item 19.



113

Item 19.



114

Item 19.



115

Item 19.



116

Item 19.



117

Item 19.



118

Item 19.



119

Item 19.



120

Item 19.



121

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I  
 
 DATE: July 26, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: 2021 Public Sidewalk Repair and Infill Project 
  Project No. SW-000-3266 
  Bid Opening 
 
On Friday, July 23rd, 2021 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 2021 
Sidewalk Repair and Infill Project. A total of two (2) bids were received, with Cobalt 
Contracting, LC. the low bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $190,959.81 

Cobalt Contracting, LC $157,876.17 

OEL Construction Services, Inc. $190,822.76 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $190,959.81. Cobalt Contracting, LC. of 
New Hartford, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $157,876.17, which is 17.3% 
below the Engineer’s Estimate. The project will be funded through General Obligation 
(GO) Bonds.  
 
We recommend acceptance of the lowest bid from Cobalt Contracting, LC.in the amount 
of $157,876.17. On August 16th, 2021, the Contract, Bonds, and Insurance Certificate 
will be submitted for City Council approval. 
  
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 David Wicke, City Engineer   
  

122

Item 20.



PROJECT BID TAB

PROJECT NAME: 2021 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT

CITY PROJECT NUMBER: SW - 000 - 3237

BID OPENING: July 23, 2021 (1) (2)

DEPARTMENT OF  PUBLIC WORKS

BID EST. UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES

1 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. 398.80 6.00$          2,392.80$      17.70$           7,058.76$      16.50$        6,580.20$      

2 REMOVAL OF CURB & GUTTER, 2.0' WIDE (L.F.) L.F. 55.00 20.00$        1,100.00$      14.90$           819.50$         58.00$        3,190.00$      

3 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY (S.Y.) S.Y. 43.00 20.00$        860.00$         23.30$           1,001.90$      50.00$        2,150.00$      

4 SIDEWALK, PCC, 4" (S.Y.) S.Y. 1385.00 50.00$        69,250.00$    39.40$           54,569.00$    60.00$        83,100.00$    

5 SIDEWALK RAMP, PCC, 6" (S.Y.) S.Y. 217.80 60.00$        13,068.00$    50.50$           10,998.90$    73.00$        15,899.40$    

6 DETECTABLE WARNING (S.F.) S.F. 316.00 50.00$        15,800.00$    34.50$           10,902.00$    37.00$        11,692.00$    

7 CURB & GUTTER, 2.0' WIDE (L.F.) L.F. 55.00 40.00$        2,200.00$      38.10$           2,095.50$      81.20$        4,466.00$      

8 DRIVEWAY, PCC, 6" (S.Y.) S.Y. 43.00 50.00$        2,150.00$      44.90$           1,930.70$      100.00$      4,300.00$      

9 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10 (C.Y.) C.Y. 265.88 27.00$        7,178.76$      22.20$           5,902.54$      33.60$        8,933.57$      

10 TOPSOIL, FURNISH & SPREAD (C.Y.) C.Y. 358.83 75.00$        26,912.25$    79.00$           28,347.57$    46.50$        16,685.60$    

11 HYDRAULIC SEEDING, FERTILZER, & MULCH (S.F.) S.F. 19348.00 1.00$          19,348.00$    0.50$             9,674.00$      0.50$          9,674.00$      

12 INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER (L.F.) L.F. 84.00 175.00$      14,700.00$    10.20$           856.80$         3.00$          252.00$         

13 REMOVAL OF EXISTING SIGNAL (L.S.) L.S. 1.00 5,000.00$   5,000.00$      2,839.00$      2,839.00$      2,000.00$   2,000.00$      

14 RRFB PEDESTRIAN SYSTEM (L.S.) L.S. 1.00 5,000.00$   5,000.00$      18,375.00$    18,375.00$    19,400.00$ 19,400.00$    

15 UNSUITABLE MATERIAL (C.Y.) C.Y. 50.00 20.00$        1,000.00$      30.70$           1,535.00$      30.00$        1,500.00$      

16 TRAFFIC CONTROL (L.S.) L.S. 1.00 5,000.00$   5,000.00$      970.00$         970.00$         1,000.00$   1,000.00$      

TOTAL $190,959.81 TOTAL $157,876.17 TOTAL $190,822.76

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

ENGINEERING DIVISION

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE OEL Construction 

Services, Inc.Cobalt Contracting, LC.

123

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I  
 
 DATE: July 26, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: 2021 Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 4 
  Project No. SW-000-3237 
  Bid Opening 
 
On Friday, July 23rd, 2021 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 2021 
Sidewalk Assessment Project. A total of two (2) bids were received, with Cobalt 
Contracting, LC the apparent low bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $62,952.10 

Cobalt Contracting, LC $57,766.37 

OEL Construction Services, Inc. $70,995.55 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $62,952.10. Cobalt Contracting, LC of New 
Hartford, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $57,766.37. Attached is a bid 
tabulation for your reference. The project will be funded through assessment of the 
corresponding property owners.  
 
We recommend acceptance of the lowest bid from Cobalt Contracting, LC in the amount 
of $57,766.37. On August 16th, 2021, the Contract, Bonds, and Insurance Certificate will 
be submitted for City Council approval. 
  
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
  David Wicke, City Engineer   
  

124

Item 21.



PROJECT NAME: 2021 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT

CITY PROJECT NUMBER: SW - 000 - 3237

BID OPENING: July 23, 2021 (1) (2)

DEPARTMENT OF  PUBLIC WORKS

BID EST. UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES

1 REMOVE SIDEWALK, P.C.C. S.Y. 687.0 20.00$        $13,740.00 24.80$           $17,037.60 11.50$        $7,900.50

2 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 4 INCH S.Y. 573.5 55.00$        $31,542.50 43.80$           $25,119.30 78.50$        $45,019.75

3 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH S.Y. 113.4 54.00$        $6,123.60 69.90$           $7,926.66 105.00$      $11,907.00

4 TOPSOIL, FURNISH AND SPREAD C.Y. 49.9 80.00$        $3,992.00 111.90$         $5,583.81 33.00$        $1,646.70

5 SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING S.F. 2554.0 1.00$          $2,554.00 0.50$             $1,277.00 0.40$          $1,021.60

#REF! TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1.0 5,000.00$   $5,000.00 822.00$         $822.00 3,500.00$   $3,500.00

TOTAL $62,952.10 TOTAL $57,766.37 TOTAL $70,995.55

ENGINEERING DIVISION

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE OEL Construction 

Services, Inc.Cobalt Contracting, LC.

125

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I  
 
 DATE: July 26, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: 2021 Permeable Alley 
  Project No. ST-000-3252 
  Bid Opening 
 
On Friday, July 23rd, 2021 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 2021 
Permeable Alley Project. A total of two (2) bids were received, with Benton’s Sand and 
Gravel the low bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $107,175.00 

Benton’s Sand and Gravel  $102,915.60 

Veith Construction Corp $145,993.80 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $107,175.00. Benton’s Sand and Gravel of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $102,915.60. Attached is a bid 
tab for your reference. The project will be funded by the Street Construction Fund (SCF) 
and Storm Water Bond (STB) funding sources. 
 
We recommend acceptance of the lowest bid from Benton’s Sand and Gravel in the 
amount of $102,915.60. On August 16th, 2021, the Contract, Bonds, and Insurance 
Certificate will be submitted for City Council approval. 
  
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer   
  

126

Item 22.



TABULATION OF BIDS

2021 Permeable Alley Project

City of Cedar Falls - Project Number RC-000-3252

July 23, 2021 at 2:00 PM

BASE BID

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

1 TOPSOIL, FURNISH & SPREAD CY 12 50.00$             600.00$               50.00$            600.00$          135.00$          1,620.00$       
2 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY WASTE CY 239 15.00$             3,585.00$            20.00$            4,780.00$       55.00$            13,145.00$     
3 MODIFIED SUBBASE 12" SY 180 18.00$             3,240.00$            10.00$            1,800.00$       25.00$            4,500.00$       
4 SUBDRAIN CLEANOUT, TYPE A-1, 6" EACH 2 500.00$           1,000.00$            550.00$          1,100.00$       950.00$          1,900.00$       
5 7" CURB & GUTTER, P.C.C., 2.5' WIDE LF 51 50.00$             2,550.00$            80.00$            4,080.00$       88.00$            4,488.00$       
6 7" CURB & GUTTER, P.C.C., 5' WIDE LF 30 100.00$           3,000.00$            83.00$            2,490.00$       91.00$            2,730.00$       
7 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY SY 79 10.00$             790.00$               10.00$            790.00$          25.00$            1,975.00$       
8 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK SY 47 10.00$             470.00$               10.00$            470.00$          24.00$            1,128.00$       
9 SIDEWALK, 6" P.C.C. SY 47 90.00$             4,230.00$            143.00$          6,721.00$       157.00$          7,379.00$       

10 DRIVEWAY, 6" P.C.C. SY 125 80.00$             10,000.00$          95.00$            11,875.00$     104.00$          13,000.00$     
11 DRIVEWAY, GRANULAR, 1" ROADSTONE SY 40 10.00$             400.00$               8.00$              320.00$          15.00$            600.00$          
12 REMOVAL OF CURB &GUTTER LF 81 10.00$             810.00$               10.00$            810.00$          19.00$            1,539.00$       
13 ENGINEERING FABRIC SY 476 5.00$               2,380.00$            5.00$              2,380.00$       5.00$              2,380.00$       
14 SUBDRAIN, 6" PLASTIC PERFORATED L.F. 280 13.00$             3,640.00$            10.00$            2,800.00$       45.00$            12,600.00$     
15 STORAGE AGGREGATE, 8" SY 358 15.00$             5,370.00$            15.00$            5,370.00$       27.00$            9,666.00$       
16 FILTER AGGREGATE, 4" SY 358 10.00$             3,580.00$            8.00$              2,864.00$       11.00$            3,938.00$       
17 PERMEABLE INTERLOCKING PAVERS, CLAY BRICK SF 1040 12.00$             12,480.00$          12.49$            12,989.60$     13.65$            14,196.00$     
18 6" P.C.C. PAVEMENT SY 180 60.00$             10,800.00$          50.00$            9,000.00$       55.00$            9,900.00$       
19 P.C.C. EDGE RESTRAINT, 6" CONCRETE SLAB, 4' WIDE SY 242 65.00$             15,730.00$          63.00$            15,246.00$     69.00$            16,698.00$     
20 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 5,000.00$        5,000.00$            1,850.00$       1,850.00$       2,150.00$       2,150.00$       
21 HYDRAULIC SEEDING SF 304 2.00$               608.00$               5.00$              1,520.00$       5.45$              1,656.80$       
22 WATTLE, STRAW, 9" LF 2 6.00$               12.00$                 5.00$              10.00$            185.00$          370.00$          
23 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE EACH 2 350.00$           700.00$               325.00$          650.00$          275.00$          550.00$          
24 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, MAINTENANCE EACH 2 100.00$           200.00$               100.00$          200.00$          55.00$            110.00$          
25 MOBILIZATION LS 1 15,000.00$      15,000.00$          10,700.00$     10,700.00$     16,500.00$     16,500.00$     
26 PATCH, HMA (ST) SURFACE, 1/2", PG58-28S TONS 5 200.00$           1,000.00$            300.00$          1,500.00$       255.00$          1,275.00$       

TOTAL BASE BID: 107,175.00$        102,915.60$   145,993.80$   

BID SECURITY: 10% 10%

Addenda 1

Bid Security x x

x x

x xNon-Collusion Affidavit

Bidder Status Form

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE Benton's Sand & Gravel Veith Contruction Corp.

1 2

127

Item 22.



128

Item 23.



129

Item 23.



130

Item 23.



131

Item 23.



132

Item 23.



133

Item 23.



134

Item 23.



135

Item 23.



136

Item 23.



137

Item 23.



138

Item 23.



139

Item 23.



140

Item 23.



141

Item 23.



142

Item 23.



143

Item 23.



144

Item 23.



145

Item 23.



146

Item 23.



147

Item 23.



148

Item 23.



149

Item 23.



150

Item 23.



151

Item 23.



152

Item 23.



153

Item 23.



154

Item 23.



155

Item 23.



156

Item 23.



157

Item 23.



158

Item 23.



159

Item 23.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular Meeting of July 19, 2021
	210719MINUTES

	Item 2.	Proclamation - National Health Center Week
	2021-08_W2_NationalHealthCenterWeek

	Item 3.	PH Cont - 2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill Project
	1. PH Memo - 2021 CDBG Sidewalk Infill
	21 CDBG SIDEWALK PRELIM COST EST (Final)

	Item 4.	PH - 2021 Seal Coat Project
	1. PH Memo - 2021 Seal Coat
	2021 Seal Coat Estimate-21-07-09

	Item 5.	PH - 2021 Street Patching Project
	1. PH Memo - 2021 Street Patching
	2021 STREET PATCHING ENGINEERS ESTIMATE

	Item 6.	2992-Viking Rd Speed Limit
	1. Memo - Viking Road Speed Limit Ordinance
	2. 2992-Viking Road Speed Limit
	3. Redlined Viking Road Speed Limit (1)

	Item 7.	2993-Parking Ordinance Amendments
	1-memocc-parking amendments
	3-2993-Parking Amendments
	2-DIVISION 2. PARKING ENFORCEMENT DISTRICTS

	Item 8.	Boards & Commissions Resignation - Craig Schwerdtfeger
	4235_001

	Item 9.	Work Session Minutes-July 19, 2021
	07-19-21 Work Session Minutes

	Item 10.	Departmental Monthly Report
	06 - June 2021 Monthly Report

	Item 11.	Liquor -Beer 8-2-21
	Liquor Beer 8-2-21

	Item 12.	Rescinding Meeting Protocols
	Res-Rescinding Res 22201

	Item 13.	PSA-Carlson Dettmann
	1-civil service testing.council.mem
	2-PSA - City of Cedar Falls IA Consulting 072721

	Item 14.	ARP funding app to Nat Endowment for Arts
	ARP Grant Funding _Cultural Programs_080221

	Item 15.	Otto Schoitz Grant-Cedar River Rec Project
	1. Council memo grant submittal

	Item 16.	REAP Grant-Cedar River Rec Project
	1. Council memo grant submittal 7-26-2021

	Item 17.	Amendment-IEDA Award-CARES Act-CDBG-CV2
	1  CC memo amendment CDBG-CV2 July 2021

	Item 18.	Temp Easements - CDBG Sidewalk Infill
	1. Temp Easements - CDBG Sidewalk Infill - 8-2-21
	2. 1405 W 3rd St. signed temp easement
	3. 1509 W 3rd St signed temp easement

	Item 19.	Habitat Project: 913 Bluff Street
	1. Council memo-Habitat 913 Bluff St.
	2. AGR-CHDO C F Bluff Project-signed 7-20-21

	Item 20.	Bid-2021 Public Sidewalk Repair and Infill Project
	1. Low Bid - 2021 Public Sidewalk Repair and Infill
	BID TAB - 2021 Public Sidewalk

	Item 21.	Low Bid - 2021 Sidewalk Assessment Project
	1. Low Bid - 2021 Sidewalk Assessment
	BID TAB - 2021 Sidewalk Assessment

	Item 22.	Bid-2021 Permeable Alley Project
	1. Low Bid - 2021 Permeable Alley
	Bid Tab

	Item 23.	Allow Bills and Claims
	1 Daily Invoices 080221
	2 Council Invoices 080221

	Bottom

